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State Corporation Commission
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BEFORE THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION 
OF THE STATE OF KANSAS 

In the Matter of the City of Ford, Kansas, 
Regarding Violations of Kansas Pipeline 
Safety Regulation 49 CFR Part 192 as 
Adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-4, and a Violation 
ofK.A.R. 82-l 1-6(b). 

) 
) 
) Docket No. 17-FORP-219-SHO 
) 
) 

JOINT MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF COMPLIANCE ORDER 

COMES NOW, the Staff of the State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas 

(Staff and Commission, respectively), and the City of Ford, Kansas (City of Ford), jointly 

referred to as "Joint Movants" and respectfully files this Joint Motion for Approval of 

Comp I iance Order. In support of the Joint Motion for Approval of Comp! iance Order, the Joint 

Movants state the following: 

I. BACKGROUND 

1. Pursuant to K.S.A. 66-1, 150 el seq., the Commission is authorized to adopt rules 

and regulations as may be necessary to be in conformance with the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety 

Act of 1968 (49 U.S.C. § 60 101 el seq.) , as amended. The Commission has adopted such 

regulations. 1 

2. The City of Ford, Kansas, operates a municipal natural gas utility with 

approximately eight miles of pipeline serving 127 customers.2 Accordingly, pursuant to K.S.A. 

66-1,150 el seq. and K.A.R. 82-11-1 el seq., the City of Ford is subject to the Commission's 

pipeline safety regulations. 

1 For reference, the Commission's adoption of Natural Gas Pipeline Safety regulations may be found at K.A.R. 82-
11-1 through K.A.R. 82-11-11. The Commission' s Kansas Underground Util ity Damage Prevention Act regulations 
may be found at K.A.R. 82- 14- 1 through K.A.R. 82-14-6. 
2 See Staff's Report and Recommendation, p. 2 (Nov. 16, 2016) (Report and Recommendation). 



3. On November 17, 2016, Staff prepared a Report and Recommendation wherein 

Staff expressed concerns regarding the condition of the City of Ford's natural gas distribution 

system as well as the City of Ford's ability to operate and maintain the system. 

4. On December 22, 2016, the Commission issued an Order to Show Cause against 

the City of Ford citing Staffs enumerated concerns.3 The Commission ordered the City to enter 

its appearance in the docket and to provide an answer identifying any and all remedial action 

taken to correct concerns cited in Staffs Report and Recommendation.4 

II. MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF PROPOSED COMPLIANCE ORDER 

5. The City of Ford retained counsel to assist in the resolution ot: among other 

things, the instant Show Cause Proceeding. Upon being retained, Counsel for the City of Ford 

formally entered their appearance in the instant proceeding. 

6. In reviewing concerns related to the City of Ford's municipal natural gas system, 

in addition to the remedial actions taken by the City of Ford, Staff and the City of Ford were able 

to develop a proposed Compliance Order for the Commission to consider. The proposed 

Compliance Order is attached to this Joint Motion as "Exhibit A." 

7. The proposed Compliance Order details the violations cited in the Commission's 

Order to Show Cause, as well as the remedial actions taken by the City of Ford. The proposed 

Compliance Order further details the treatment of civil penalties proposed against the City of 

Ford should future deficiencies occur. 

8. The proposed Compliance Order resolves the concerns of Staff identified in 

Staffs Report and Recommendation attached to the Commission's December 22, 2016 Order to 

3 Order to Show Cause (Dee. 22, 2016). 
4 See id at p. 7. 
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Show Cause. Staff and the City of Ford believe the proposed Compliance Order represents a 

reasonable and fair resolution of this matter. 

9. Should the Conunission accept the terms of the attached Compliance Order the 

Joint Movants waive their respective rights to cross-examine witnesses and present oral 

arguments or written briefs to the Commission in the instant proceeding. The Joint Movant's 

also waive their rights to request reconsideration of the Compliance Order and waive their rights 

to seek judicial review of said order 

WHEREFORE, for the reasons set forth herein, Staff and the City of ford request this 

Joint Motion be granted, the proposed Compliance Order be approved, and for any other relief 

the Commission deems just and reasonable. 

By: ,A:z?-~ 
Robert E. Vincent, S. Ct. #26028 
Litigation Counsel 
Kansas Corporation Commission 
1500 S.W. Arrowhead Road 
Topeka, Kansas 66604-4027 
Phone: 785-271-3273 
Fax: 785-271-3167 
Email: r.vincent@kcck.ks.gov 

Attorney for Conunission Staff 

By: 
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Andrew Stein, S. Ct. # 26361 
Associate Attorney 
Doll Law Firm 
206 W Wyatt Earp 
Dodge City, Kansas 67801 
Phone: 620-227-9889 
Fax: 620-227-9983 
Email: andy@dolllawfirm.com 

Attorney for the City of Ford, Kansas 
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9. Should the Commission accept the terms of the attached Compliance Order the 
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13y: 
Robe11 E. Vincent, S. Ct. 1126028 
Litigation Counsel 
Kansas Corporation Commission 
I SOO S. W. Arrowhead Road 
Topeka, Kansas 66604-4027 
Phone: 785-271-3273 
Fax: 785-271-3167 
Email: r.vinccnt@kcck.ks.gov 

Attorney for Commission Staff 
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By: g~ 
Doll Law Firm, LLC 
206 'W Wyatt Earp 
Dodge City, Kansas 67801 
Phone:620-227-9889 
f'ax : 620-227-9983 
Email: andy@dolllawfirm.com 

Attorney for the City of Ford, Kansas 
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THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION 
OF THE STATE OF KANSAS 

Before Commissioners: Pat Apple, Chairman 
Shari Feist Albrecht 
Jay Scott Emler 

In the Matter of the City of Ford, Kansas, ) 
Regarding Violations of Kansas Pipeline ) 
Safety Regulation 49 CFR Part 192 as ) DocketNo. 17-FORP-219-SHO 
Adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-4, and a Violation ) 
of K.A.R. 82-l 1-6(b ). ) 

COMPLIANCE ORDER 

The above-captioned matter comes before the State Corporation Commission of the State 

of Kansas (Commission). Having examined its files and records, and being duly advised in the 

premises, the Commission finds and concludes as follows: 

I. BACKGROUND 

1. Pursuant to K.S .A. 66-1, 150 el seq., the Conunission is authorized to adopt mies 

and regulations as may be necessary to be in conformance with the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety 

Act of I 968 (49 U.S.C. § 60101 el seq.), as amended. The Commission has adopted such 

regulations. 1 Such rules and regulations are applicable to: 

(1) All public utilities and all municipal corporations or quasi-municipal corporations 
transporting natural gas or rendering gas utility service; (2) all operators of master meter 
systems, as defined by 49 C.F.R. § 191.3 ; (3) all operators of privately or publicly owned 
pipelines providing natural gas service or transportation directly to the ultimate consumer 
for the purpose of manufacturing goods or generating power; and (4) providers of rural 
gas service under the provisions of K.S .A. 66-2101 through 66-2106, and amendments 
thereto.2 

2. Pursuant to K.S.A. 66-1, 151, the Commission is authorized to impose civil 

penalties for violations of the gas pipel ine safety rules and regulations. Penalties may not exceed 

1 For reference, the Commission's adoption ofNatural Gas Pipeline Safety regulations may be found al K.A.R. 82-
11-1 through K.A.R. 82-11-11. The Commission's Kansas Underground Utility Damage Prevention Act regulations 
maybe found at K.A.R. 82-14-1 through K.A.R. 82-14-6. 
2 K.S.A. 66-J, l 50(a). 



$25,000 per violation for each day a violation persists.3 Additionally, the maximum civil penalty 

shall not exceed $1,000,000 for any related series ofviolations.4 

3. Pursuant to K.A.R. 82-1-237, the Commission has the authority to investigate a 

party under its jurisdiction and order a hearing on its own motion when the Commission believes 

the party is in violation of the law or any order of the Commission. K.A.R. 82-11-6( e) provides 

a show cause hearing may be held by the Commission when all other reasonable measures have 

failed to produce operator compliance, or when non-compliance presents an imminent danger to 

persons or property. 

4. The City of Ford, Kansas ("City" or "Ford"), operates a municipal natural gas 

utility with approximately eight miles of pipeline serving 127 customers.5 Accordingly, pursuant 

to K.S.A. 66-1,150 et seq. and K.A.R. 82-11-1 et seq., the City is subject to the Commission's 

pipeline safety regulations. 

5. On November 17, 2016, Commission Staff (Staff) prepared a Report and 

Recommendation wherein Staff expressed concerns regarding the condition of the City's natural 

gas distribution system as well as the City's ability to operate and maintain the system. 

6. On December 22, 2016, the Commission issued an Order to Show Cause against 

the City of Ford citing Staff's enumerated concerns.6 The Commission ordered the City to enter 

its appearance in the docket and to provide an answer identifying any and all remedial action 

taken to correct concerns cited in Staff's Report and Recommendation.7 

3 K.S.A. 66-1,151. 
4 K.S.A. 66-1,151. 
5 See Staff's Report and Recommendation, p. 2 (Nov. 16, 2016) (Report and Recommendation). 
6 Order to Show Cause (Dec. 22, 2016). 
7 See id at p. 7. 
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II. DISCUSSION 

7. The record in this docket indicates the City has actively taken steps to remedy the 

Commission and its Staffs concerns identified within Staffs November 17, 2016, Report and 

Recommendation. 

8. After the Commission issued its Order to Show Cause, the City kept Commission 

Staff informed regarding its remedial actions.8 Though the City did not retain counsel or enter 

an appearance until significant time had elapsed, Staff was able to detail the City's remedial 

efforts in Status Updates.9 Staff stated it believed the City was attempting to substantively 

comply with the Commission's Order to Show Cause. 10 Staff noted its Status Update did not 

relieve the City of its obligation to formally enter an appearance and submit an Answer. 11 

9. On June 14, 2017, the Commission received a Response from the Clerk and 

Mayor of the City of Ford. 12 The City responded to each Count identified in the Commission's 

Order to Show Cause. Specifically, the City responded it had: repaired its gas system's cathodic 

protection system, was in the process of repainting all exposed pipes and replacing meters as 

needed, and took responsibility for failing to timely respond to Staffs inspection results. 13 The 

City further detailed steps taken to rectify concerns surrounding lost and unaccounted for gas 

purchases. 14 

10. The City requested the Commission reconsider the civil penalty recommended, 

and pledged to be a more responsible gas system operator. 15 

8 See Status Update, p. 2 (Mar. 17, 2017). 
9 See id 
10 See id. at pp. 2-3. 
11 See id at p. 2. 
12 Response to Order to Show Cause (Jun. 14, 2016) (City Response). 
13 See id at p. I. 
14 See id at p. 2. 
15 See icl 
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11. As with any other natural gas utility, the Commission recognizes the need to 

engage in enforcement actions to ensure public safety is never compromised. Accordingly, the 

Commission turns to the City's response to the Order to Show Cause. 

Count I 

12. 49 C.F.R. 192.463 as adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-4, External Corrosion Control: 

Each cathodic protection system ... must provide a level of cathodic protection that complies 

with one or more of the applicable criteria contained in Appendix D of 49 C.F.R. Part 192. A 

rectifier station was found to be inoperable in August of 2016. Ford's contractor had previously 

informed the City of the criteria not being met in April of2016. An inoperable rectifier station is 

an apparent violation of 49 C.F.R. 192.463 as adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-4. 

13. The City stated it has repaired its gas system's cathodic protection system. 16 The 

City provided a work invoice to indicate such repair had been completed. 17 The invoice 

provided by the City indicates the City spent approximately $16 thousand in graphite anodes and 

repaired a rectifier stack. 18 The Commission finds this remedial action satisfies the concerns 

identified within the Commission's Order to Show Cause and Staffs Report and 

Recommendation. 

Count 2 

14. 49 C.F.R. 192.479 as adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-4, Atmospheric Corrosion 

Control: Each operator must clean and coat each pipeline or portion of pipeline that is exposed 

to the atmosphere. The August 2016 inspection found virtually all above ground gas piping in 

the system had no protective coating and exhibited atmospheric corrosion. Failing to clean and 

16 See City Response, p. l. 
17 See id. at p. 3. 
18 See frl 
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coat each pipeline or po1iion of pipeline that is exposed to the atmosphere 1s an apparent 

violation of 49 C.F.R. 192.479 as adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-4. 

15. The City responded it was repainting all exposed pipes in addition to replacing 

meters as required. 19 The action taken by the City regarding Count 2 is a step towards 

compliance, but is not yet in itself sufficient to alleviate the Commission's concerns. Once all of 

the City's above ground gas piping has a protective coating in place will the Commission be 

satisfied the City has remedied this concern. Accordingly, the Commission finds the City is 

taking steps to comply with the above-referenced natural gas safety regulations but is not yet 

fully compliant. 

Count3 

16. Return of Evaluation Form as adopted by K.A.R. 82-11-6: Each completed 

evaluation form [described in K.A.R. 82-l l-6(a)] shall be signed by the operator and returned to 

the gas pipeline safety section within 30 calendar days of the date the evaluation letter and 

evaluation form were received by the operator. Each evaluation form shall detail the actions 

taken by the operator, or shall set forth a proposed plan to bring the operator's system into 

compliance with the applicable safety standards. Failure to respond to and return the evaluation 

letter and evaluation form detailing the actions taken by the operator, or setting forth a proposed 

plan to bring the operator's system into compliance with the safety standards [described in 

Article 11 of Kansas Administrative Regulations chapter 82] is an apparent violation of K.A.R. 

82-l l-6(b ). 

17. The City apologized for not timely responding to Staffs previous inspection 

results.2° The City indicated it provided a reply to Staff (regarding this proceeding) on or about 

19 See City Response, p. l. 
2° City Response, p. I. 
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February 3, 2017.21 As discussed previously, Staff submitted a Status Report in March 2017 to 

indicate dialogue the City had engaged in and detail the City's progress towards compliance.22 

The City further pledged to be a more responsible gas system operator and make safety and 

regulatory compliance a priority.23 

18. The Commission believes the City is actively taking steps to operate its natural 

gas system in a manner that provides sufficient and efficient service to its residents while 

maintaining the necessary and required regulatory standards. Public safety surrounding the 

operation of a utility, regardless of size or characteristics, is a top priority and concern for the 

Commission. The Commission finds the record in this proceeding indicates the City will be a 

more responsible and responsive natural gas utility going forward. 

19. The Commission is mindful of the gravity of non-compliance previously 

exhibited by the City, but also recognizes the remedial action undertaken to address such 

concerns and a willingness to be more forthright in the future. The City has asked the 

Commission reconsider its civil penalty. The Commission agrees to do so on condition the City 

completes any and all remedial actions necessary to rectify identified shortcomings in this 

proceeding, and continues to maintain compliance with the Commission's pipeline safety 

regulations. 

21 See id. 
22 See Status Update, pp. 2-3. 
23 See City Response, p. 2. 
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III. FINDINGS OF FACT 

20. Pursuant to K.S.A. 66-1,150 el seq., the Commission is authorized to adopt rules 

and regulations as may be necessary to be in conformance with the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety 

Act of 1968 (49 U.S.C. § 60101 el seq.), as amended. 

21. The City of Ford, Kansas, operates a municipal natural gas utility with 

approximately eight miles of pipeline serving 127 customers.24 Accordingly, pursuant to K.S.A. 

66-1,150 et seq. and K.A.R. 82-11-1 el seq., the City is subject to the Commission's pipeline 

safety regulations. 

22. Regarding Count 1, the Commission finds the City of Ford has actively taken 

steps to remedy previously identified defects. The Commission finds this remedial action 

satisfies the concerns identified within the Commission's Order to Show Cause and Staffs 

Report and Recommendation. 

23. Regarding Count 2, the Commission finds the City of Ford is taking steps to 

remedy previously identified defects. However, the Commission finds it necessary to impose a 

deadline to complete this remedial action. Therefore, the Commission finds the City of Ford 

shall be granted 180 days from the date of this Compliance Order to complete remedial action 

necessary to render compliance with the Commission's natural gas pipeline safety regulations 

identified in Count 2. 

24. Regarding Count 3, the Commission finds the City of Ford has demonstrated 

remorse for previously failing to comply with Commission reporting requirements. The 

Commission finds the record in this proceeding indicates the City will be a more responsible and 

responsive natural gas utility going forward. 

24 See Staff's Rep01i and Recommendation, p. 2 (Nov. 16, 2016) (Rep01i and Recommendation). 
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25. The Commission finds the actions taken by the City of Ford are encouraging and 

indicate the City will take appropriate steps necessary to remain compliant with the 

Commission's natural gas pipeline safety regulations. However, past conduct by the City does 

not obviate the need for compliance proceedings and penalties. Accordingly, the Commission 

finds penalty and enforcement actions are required to ensure the City of Ford fully satisfies the 

Commission's previously articulated concerns. 

26. The Commission finds the remedial actions taken by the City merit issuing a civil 

penalty at the lower range of Staffs recommendation. The Commission finds a civil penalty of 

$500 should be imposed against the City. 

27. As stated above, the City requests this Commission exercise lenity with any civil 

penalty. Given the small size of the City's natural gas system and capital expenditures 

undertaken by the City to remedy the Commission's concerns, the Commission finds the civil 

penalty issued in this proceeding shall be suspended and held in abeyance for a period of two 

years with two caveats. First, the City of Ford must complete all necessary work to become 

compliant with Count 2, above, within 180 days from the effective date of this Compliance 

Order. Second, if no further pipeline safety or other Commission enforcement actions are 

brought against the City within two years from the effective date of this Compliance Order, the 

$500 civil penalty shall be canceled. If the City violates the Commission's pipeline safety 

statutes, rules, and regulations, or any other provision of Kansas law pertaining to safe utility 

operations during this two-year period, the $500 civil penalty issued in this proceeding will 

become due and payable immediately. 
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IV. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

28. The Commission finds Staff's investigation shows the City has committed 

multiple violations of Kansas Gas Pipeline Safety Regulations as set forth in Counts I through 3, 

above. 

29. Pursuant to K.S.A. 66-1,150 et seq., the Commission is authorized to adopt rules 

and regulations as may be necessary to be in conformance with the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety 

Act of 1968 (49 U.S.C. § 60101 et seq.), as amended. 

30. The Commission concludes pursuant to K.S.A. 66-1, 151 each of the foregoing 

alleged violations, if proven to be valid, constitutes a separate and distinct violation subject to 

sanctions or civil penalties by the Commission of up to $25,000 per violation for each day that 

the violation persists.25 Additionally, the maximum civil penalty shall not exceed $1,000,000 for 

any related series ofviolations.26 

31. Pursuant to K.S.A. 66-1, 152, the Commission may compromise on any civil 

penalty. The Commission may consider the appropriateness of the penalty as to the size of the 

entity, gravity of violation, and good faith attempts to achieve compliance.27 

32. The Commission concludes the City of Ford's actions to date merit issuing a civil 

penalty at the lower range of Staffs recommendation. Accordingly, the Commission concludes 

a $500 civil penalty shall be issued against the City of Ford, Kansas. 

33. The Commission concludes the City of Ford's actions to date merit compromise 

regarding the civil penalty issued against the City of Ford. Accordingly, the Commission 

concludes, pursuant to K.S.A. 66-1, 152 the $500 civil penalty issued against the City shall be 

suspended and held in abeyance for two years from the effective date of this Compliance Order. 

25 K.S.A. 66-1,151. 
26 K.S.A. 66-1, I 5 l. 
27 See K.S.A. 66-1,152. 
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The civil penalty shall either be canceled or imposed in accordance with the terms identified in 

paragraph 27, above. 

34. The Commission finds the City of Ford's June 14, 2017 Response, as signed by 

the Mayor of the City, indicates the City has worked in good faith to respond to the 

Commission's Order to Show Cause. Though not a traditional formal response, the Commission 

accepts the City's June 14, 2017 Response, as an Answer to the Commission's Order to Show 

Cause. Furthermore, the Commission accepts and acknowledges the City's Counsel's Entry of 

Appearance. 

IT IS, THEREFORE, BY THE COMMISSION ORDERED THAT: 

(A) The City of Ford, Kansas, is hereby assessed a $500 civil penalty. 

(B) The $500 civil penalty is hereby suspended and held in abeyance for two years 

from the effective date of this Compliance Order. 

(C) The $500 civil penalty shall be canceled or enforced as described in paragraph 27 

of this Compliance Order. 

(D) Parties have 15 days, plus three days if service is by mail, from the date of service 

of this Order to petition the Commission for reconsideration or request a hearing, as provided in 

K.S.A. 77-542.28 

(D) The Commission retains jurisdiction over the subject matter and the parties for the 

purpose of entering such further orders as it may deem necessary and proper. 

28 See also K.S.A. 77-537(b); K.S.A. 66-1I8b; K.S.A. 77-529(a)(J ). 
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BY THE COMMISSION IT IS SO ORDERED. 

Apple, Chairman; Albrecht, Commissioner; Emler, Commissioner 

LynnM. Retz 
Secretary to the Commission 

REV 
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STATE OF KANSAS ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF SHAWNEE ) 

VERIFICATION 

Robert E. Vincent, being duly sworn upon his oath deposes and states that he is Litigation 

Counsel for the State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas, that he has read and is 

fami liar with the foregoing Joint Motion for Approval of Compliance Order and that the statements 

contained therein are true and correct to the best of his knO\vledge, information and belief. 

Robert E. Vincent, Litigation Counsel # 26028 
Kansas Corporation Commission of the 
State of Kansas 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20th day of September, 2017. 

My Appointment Expires: August 17, 20 19 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

17-FORP-219-SHO 

I, the undersigned, certify that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Joint Motion for 
Approval of Compliance Order was served by electronic service on this 20th day of September, 2017, to 
the following: 

ANDREW STEIN, ATIORNEY AT LAW 
DOLL LAW FIRM 
206 W WYATI EARP 
DODGE CITY, KS 67801 
Fax: 620-227-9983 
andy@dolllawfirm.com 

ROBERT VINCENT, LITIGATION COUNSEL 
KANSAS CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1500 SW ARROWHEAD RD 
TOPEKA, KS 66604-4027 
Fax: 785-271-3354 
r. vincent@kcc.ks.gov 


